
Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR 
Tel: 01322 343434  Web:www.dartford.gov.uk 

 
 
 

STRATEGIC HOUSING 
BOARD 

 
Councillor D J Mote (Chairman) 

Councillor J A Kite, MBE (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Mrs A D Allen, MBE 
Councillor T A Maddison 

 
 

A meeting of the above Committee will be held on 

 
Wednesday 7 April 2021 at 2.00pm 

 
 This meeting will be held virtually via Zoom. Details of how to access the meeting on 

YouTube are contained in the meeting page, along with the agenda and papers. 
 
 

 
Strategic Director (Internal Services) 

Friday 26 March 2021 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 

 



 

 
STRATEGIC HOUSING BOARD 

AGENDA 
 

Wednesday 7 April 2021 at 2.00pm 
 
 

Viewing this meeting on YouTube 

This meeting may be viewed on YouTube by opening the following link: 
 
https://youtu.be/mGt_hQwx-fQ 
 

1. Apologies for Absence  
 

 

2. Declarations of Interest   

 To receive any declarations of interest from Members including the 
terms of any Grant(s) of Dispensation by the Audit Board or the 
Strategic Director (Internal Services). 
 

 

3. Confirmation of the minutes of the meeting of the Strategic 
Housing Board held on  27 January 2021 and Matters Arising 
(Pages 1 - 6) 

 

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Strategic Housing Board 
held on 27 January 2021 as an accurate record.  
 

 

4. Urgent Items  
 

 

5. References from Other Committees   

 There are no references from other committees. 
 

 

6. Mortgage and Other Financial Products available in the Local 
Housing Economy - Panel Discussion  
 

 

7. Dartford Strategic Housing Mosaic - Update   

 The Chairman will provide an oral update on progress on the Dartford 
Strategic Housing Mosaic. 
 

 

8. Private Sector Housing Stock Condition Survey (Pages 7 - 10)  

 To consider the main findings of a private sector stock condition 
survey that was commissioned by the Council in order to better 
understand the dwelling stock and to inform the development of a 
private sector renewal strategy. 
 

 

https://youtu.be/mGt_hQwx-fQ


 

9. Date of Next Meeting and Future Items  
 

 

 The next meeting is provisionally scheduled to take place at 2.00pm 
on 14 July 2021. 
 

 

 



1 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

STRATEGIC HOUSING BOARD 
 

MINUTES of the meeting of the Strategic Housing Board held on Wednesday 27 
January 2021. 

 
PRESENT: 
 

Councillor David J Mote (Chairman) 
Councillor Jeremy A Kite MBE (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Mrs Ann D Allen MBE 
Councillor Tom A Maddison 
 

 
ALSO 
PRESENT 

Mr Jamie McArthur and Ms Caroline Webb (Bellway Homes) 

 
 Dartford Borough Council Officers:- 

Sheri Green    Strategic Director (External Services) 
Peter Dosad   Head of Housing Services 
Sonia Collins   Head of Planning Services 
Jackie Pye   Housing Policy and Development 
    Manager 
Alan Twyman  Democratic Services Manager 
Neil Murphy   Democratic Services Officer 

 
36. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
There were no apologies for absence received. 
 

37. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest made. 
 

38. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 
STRATEGIC HOUSING BOARD HELD ON 14 OCTOBER 2020 AND 
MATTERS ARISING  
 
Councillor Mote, the Chairman, reported that it had been intended that 
representatives from the Association of Mortgage Lenders would be invited to 
attend the meeting to update the Board on the financial products available to 
home-buyers.  However the Association had declined the invitation to attend.   
 
In view of this it was noted that two representatives of Bellway Homes were 
present and would report on their work and development in the Borough. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Minutes of the Strategic Housing Board held on 14 October 2020 be 
confirmed as an accurate record of that meeting. 
 
 

39. URGENT ITEMS  
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



STRATEGIC HOUSING BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 27 JANUARY 2021 
 
 

2 

There were no urgent items for the Board to consider.. 
 

40. REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES  
 
There were no references to the Board from any other committees. 
 

41. BELLWAY HOMES - SALES AND MARKETING IN DARTFORD  
 
The Chairman introduced Mr Jamie McArthur and Ms Caroline Webb from 
Bellway Homes, currently the largest new housing developer in the Borough. 
 

Mr McArthur updated the Board on the two housing developments being 
undertaken by Bellway Homes in Dartford and on the progress made in each 
site.  He reported that around 1100 new units were being constructed on the 
site adjoining Lowfield Street with a further 200 at Ebbsfleet Cross, in 
Swanscombe.  Of these, the properties in Swanscombe were due to be 
completed in the forthcoming months and those in Lowfield Street sometime 
later in 2021/2022. 
 
Ms Webb informed the Board of initiatives undertaken by Bellway to market 
their properties to local residents which included: 
 

 A Sales event at Dartford Football club 

 Local Press Advertising 

 Use of Social Media (Facebook) 

 Website Advertising 

 Physical Advertising on Hoardings 
 
She stressed that the need to maximise the information available to 
prospective purchasers was paramount, as quite often enquirers 
underestimated the size and quality of properties which were available, and 
the various aid schemes available to them. 
 
As a result of an enquiry from a Board Member, the Board was informed that 
current “Help to Buy” schemes, which were not developer led, required 
specific criteria to be met by applicants and there was no specific limit 
imposed by the Developers on the numbers of properties which could be 
purchased in this way. It was also noted that it was possible that the Council’s 
web site could be better used to raise awareness of the various products 
available to purchasers but that much information was also available from the 
various advertising media used by Bellway Homes. 
 
Finally, the Board enquired at the necessity for ongoing service charges to be 
made on property sales.  It was noted that these were imposed on leasehold 
purchases where maintenance of buildings was undertaken, but increasingly 
were imposed on freehold sales where grounds and roads maintenance was 
to be financed. 
 

Page 2Agenda Item 3



STRATEGIC HOUSING BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 27 JANUARY 2021 
 
 

3 

Issues often occurred where Management Companies, engaged or 
established to look after public areas or enforce parking restrictions, failed in 
their responsibilities, and the Board urged Bellway Homes to ensure that 
adequate provisions were made in this respect. 
 
Councillor Mote, the Chairman, thanked Mr McArthur and Ms Webb for 
attending the meeting and for the information and help that they had given to 
Members. 
 
 

42. DARTFORD STRATEGIC HOUSING MOSAIC - UPDATE  
 
The Board considered the latest update on the Housing Mosaic, a matrix 
designed to guide applicants through the initial phases of looking for Housing 
in the Borough and to signpost the way forward for other people seeking 
accommodation. 
 
The value of the Mosaic as a paper document was recognised but its 
development as an interactive digital guide was required to maximise its 
usefulness to applicants, other interested parties and Officers. 
 
It was also noted that the draft of the Mosaic, in one form or another, had 
existed for a considerable period of time and required formal adoption in the 
near future. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Members consider the detail of the latest version of the Mosaic, 
and pass any further amendments to Officers by 5 February 2021,  

 
2. That the finalised document be passed to IT to take initial steps in 

development for digital use, and; 
 

3. An update on progress be presented to the next Board meeting. 
 
 

43. HOMELESSNESS UPDATE  
 
Mr Dosad, the Head of Housing Services, presented a report which updated 
the Board on the work currently being undertaken in the Borough to aid those 
“sleeping rough” on the Borough streets. 
 
He explained the work undertaken under the Severe Weather Emergency 
Protocol (SWEP) to protect rough sleepers during the coldest periods in 
winter, and also the work undertaken by both the Council and partner 
organisations in an effort to move rough sleepers from the streets regardless 
of housing need and support their efforts to find work and permanent 
accommodation.   
 

Page 3 Agenda Item 3



STRATEGIC HOUSING BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 27 JANUARY 2021 
 
 

4 

He also outlined proposed initiatives to address homelessness and rough 
sleeping in future months. 
 
Arising from the report it was noted that  
 

 Current initiatives and the Council’s support of the Combined Dartford 
Churches homelessness activities could possibly be extended into 
future years to address homelessness and rough sleeping issues,  

 

 That the schemes could give opportunities to access individuals to 
enable their individual issues to be addressed; and,  

 

 The schemes could be used to address “rough sleeping” on a year 
round basis and not be limited to winter months.  
 
 

RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
 

44. UPDATE ON THE DEVELOPMENT OF A NEW HOUSING STRATEGY FOR 
DARTFORD  
 
Jackie Pye, the Housing Policy and Development Manager presented a report 
which updated the Board on the development of a new housing strategy for 
Dartford. The Board was reminded that it had considered the need for an 
updated Housing Strategy at the meeting held on 20 October 2020, and had 
asked that the Head of Housing develop a framework for this for consideration 
by the Board. 
 
Arising from this the Board received a list of contents for the proposed 
strategy but was informed that in order to align the Strategy with the Council’s 
Local Plan document (which is to be submitted to the Planning Inspectorate in 
May 2021) and to allow the inclusion of information from the forthcoming 2021 
Census it was proposed to defer preparation of the detailed Strategy pending 
their availability. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the Board  
 

1. Note the presentation of the “Contents” of the proposed new Housing 
Strategy; and, 

 
2. Agreed that the preparation of a new Housing Strategy be deferred 

pending publication of the new Dartford Local Plan Document, and 
availability of information from the 2021 Census  

 

Page 4Agenda Item 3



STRATEGIC HOUSING BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 27 JANUARY 2021 
 
 

5 

 
 

45. COUNCIL NEW BUILD HOUSING PROGRAMME UPDATE  
 
The Board received a report on the progress of the current new build housing 
programme and was informed that this was funded by use of capital receipts 
from the sale of Council properties.   
 

It was noted that the Council had already developed three sites in Temple Hill 
providing 86 new homes and were in the process of building at a further four 
sites within the Borough which would contribute another 32 units, three of 
which were designed as wheelchair accessible. 
 
Development at three of these sites was due to be completed in 2021 and the 
fourth in 2022. 
 
In addition to these developments the Council had purchased a number of 
properties on the open market, including one at auction.  Since July 2020 a 
total of eighteen homes have been acquired in this way with a further four 
purchases expected to be completed in the near future. 
 
As a result of both the developments and purchases it is not expected that 
Dartford will be required to refund to Government any of the capital receipts 
retained under the 1 – 4 – 1 scheme. 
 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
 
 

46. DATE OF NEXT MEETING AND FUTURE ITEMS  
 
It was reported that the next scheduled meeting would be held at 2.00pm on 
Wednesday 7 April 2021. 
 
Having noted that the Association of Mortgage Lenders had been unable to 
attend the Board it was still considered that it would be helpful to have an 
informed discussion on the mortgage market and other financial products 
available in the local housing market.  Accordingly it was proposed that a 
panel of local public and independent financial advisers be invited to attend 
the next meeting to facilitate that discussion.   
 
Additionally it was noted that feedback relating to the Housing Mosaic would 
be available at the meeting. 
 
 
 

 

Page 5 Agenda Item 3



STRATEGIC HOUSING BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 27 JANUARY 2021 
 
 

6 

The meeting closed at 3.12 pm 
 
  

 
 

Councillor D Mote 
CHAIRMAN 

 
 
 

Page 6Agenda Item 3



 
STRATEGIC HOUSING BOARD 

07 APRIL 2021 
 

PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING STOCK CONDITION SURVEY 

1. Summary 

1.1. A private sector stock condition survey was commissioned by the Council in order 
to better understand the dwelling stock and to inform the development of a private 
sector renewal strategy. 

1.2. This report sets out the main findings of the survey.  

2. RECOMMENDATION 

3. That it be noted that the Building Research Establishment report will be used to 

inform the development of a new Private Sector Renewal Strategy for Dartford, 

to be presented to Cabinet in due course. 

 

3. Background and Discussion 

3.1. The Council commissioned the Building Research Establishment (BRE) to 

assist with gathering intelligence on the housing stock in the borough with 

a particular emphasis on the private rented stock.  The project was funded 

by MHCLG’s Private Rented Sector Innovation and Enforcement Grant 

Fund (2019/20). This funding supports new, innovative, or targeted short-

term initiatives to tackle criminal landlords and raise the standard of 

properties in the Private Rented Sector (PRS) including intelligence 

gathering projects such as this.  

  

3.2. BRE provide this housing stock intelligence down to dwelling level from 

which it can be aggregated to provide information to any geographical layer 

e.g. Ward, Authority, Super Output Area.   

 

3.3. The BRE Housing Stock Models (Models) have been used to provide the 

Council with detailed information on the likely tenure, condition and 

household vulnerability of the stock and the geographical distribution of 

properties of interest. The information covers the whole of the housing stock 

providing necessary context to the private rented sector information.     

 

3.4. The Models use a range of statistical techniques to predict the likely status 

of individual dwellings for various condition and energy efficiency indicators 

and include, at the heart of the modelling process, an energy model based 

on the Standard Assessment Procedure (SAP) which can be used to both 

predict energy efficiency and model potential improvements.  

 

3.5. The Models also include local data, provided by the Council. 

 

3.6. The detailed housing stock information in the BRE report provides the 

Council with a resource for querying and collating information relating to the 

Page 7 Agenda Item 8



 STRATEGIC HOUSING BOARD 
07 APRIL 2021 

 

housing stock.  This resource can be used to support the development of 

strategies and inform housing-related decisions for the area, enabling a 

targeted intervention approach to improving housing.  

 

4. Headline results: 

 

4.1. Based on government returns and data sets held by various agencies, there 

are 46,983 dwellings in Dartford, 63% of which are owner occupied, 23% 

private rented i.e. 86% of dwellings are in the private sector, and 14% are 

social rented.  

4.2. In order to model tenure distribution at ward level the Council requested 

10,000 addresses from the Council Tax Register to be submitted to the 

Land Registry for processing. These addresses were selected across all 

wards so that a borough-wide sample was submitted.  The aim of the 

borough wide sampling work was to obtain evidence of tenure for a 

representative sample of addresses in each ward. This tenure distribution 

based on the evidence from the samples was then applied across each of 

the wards. This analysis has resulted in 17,419 dwellings in Dartford having 

evidenced tenure information. This is 37.1% of dwellings across all wards 

in Dartford.  

4.3. Desktop analysis and modelling has assessed that, based on the total 

numbers and percentages of dwellings, by tenure, at 4.1 above, 2,908 

dwellings in the private sector have category 1 Housing Health and Safety 

Rating System (HHSRS) hazards. This equates to 7% of private sector 

properties.    

4.4. Using the same methodology 719 dwellings in the private rented sector 

have category 1 HHSRS hazards. This equates to 7% of properties in the 

private rented sector.  In comparison, only 25, (0.006%) of council owned 

properties have a Category 1 HHSRS hazard.  These mainly relate to hot 

surfaces where tenants have refused new kitchens and signed disclaimers. 

4.5. The highest concentrations of all HHSRS hazards in the private rented 

sector are found in the wards of Newtown, Longfield, New Barn & Southfleet 

and Swanscombe.   

4.6. The highest concentrations of fuel poverty (Low Income High Costs 

definition) in the private rented sector are found in the wards of 

Swanscombe, Princes and Darenth and for excess cold the highest 

concentrations are in Longfield, New Barn & Southfleet, Wilmington, Sutton-

at-Hone & Hawley and Newtown.   

4.7. The average Simple SAP rating for all private sector dwellings in Dartford 

is 62, which is better than both England (60) and the South East (60). For 

owner occupied stock the figure is 61 and for private rented stock it is 65.  

4.8. The total cost of mitigating category 1 hazards in Dartford’s private sector 

stock is estimated to be £10.0 million – with £7.5 million in the owner 

occupied sector, and £2.5 million in the private rented sector.  

4.9. There are an estimated 784 HMOs in Dartford, of which approximately 141 

come under the mandatory licensing scheme. 

4.10. 3.8% (1,533) of private sector dwellings and 2.6% (283) of private rented 

dwellings in Dartford are estimated to have an EPC rating below band E.   

Page 8Agenda Item 8



 
STRATEGIC HOUSING BOARD 

07 APRIL 2021 
 
4.11. In the private sector stock, there are an estimated 6,357 dwellings with un-

insulated cavity walls and 6,204 dwellings with less than 100mm of loft 

insulation.  

 

5. Next Steps 

 

5.1. The information contained within the BRE report will be used to inform the 

development of a new Private Sector Renewal Strategy for Dartford.  It is 

anticipated that this will be developed this year and presented to Cabinet in 

due course. 

6. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 

This report relates to the Corporate Plan aims of ‘meeting the housing needs 

of the Borough and achieving self-reliant communities’. 

7. Financial, legal, staffing and other implications and risk assessments 

 

Financial Implications The Council currently holds £68k for renovation 

grants.  Any repaid grants can be recycled and used 

to provide further grants to eligible households. 

Legal Implications None specifically 

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative Implications None  

Risk Assessment No specific risks associated with this report. 

Equality Impact 

Assessment 

Not applicable to this report.  An EIA will be prepared 

alongside the development of the Private Sector 

Renewal Strategy. 

  

Appendices 

None 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents consulted Date / 
File Ref 

Report Author Section 
and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 
 

  Jackie Pye 
(01322) 343683 

Housing/ 
External 
Services 

N/A 

 

Page 9 Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10


	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of the minutes of the meeting of the Strategic Housing Board held on  27 January 2021 and Matters Arising
	8 Private Sector Housing Stock Condition Survey

